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PART 1 – ITEM 1 – FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

 (Unaudited) (Audited)

 At September 30, At December 31,

(In thousands, except share and per share data)     2008     2007

Assets     
Cash and due from banks $ 38,641 $ 76,265 
Federal funds sold  1,718  75,665 
Interest-bearing deposits  2,178  1,719 
               Total cash and cash equivalents  42,537  153,649 
Investments in debt and equity securities     
     available for sale, at estimated fair value  113,932  83,333 
Loans held for sale  520  3,420 
Portfolio loans  1,942,600  1,641,432 
     Less: Allowance for loan losses  25,662  21,593 
               Portfolio loans, net  1,916,938  1,619,839 
Other real estate  11,285   2,963 
Fixed assets, net  25,166  22,223 
Accrued interest receivable  7,926  8,334 
State tax credits held for sale     
     at estimated fair value as of September 30, 2008  37,751  23,149 
Goodwill   51,312  57,177 
Intangibles, net  4,346  6,053 
Prepaid expenses and other assets  24,688  18,978 



               Total assets $           2,236,401 $           1,999,118 
 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity     
Deposits:     
     Demand deposits $ 225,013 $ 278,313 
     Interest-bearing transaction accounts  118,614  131,141 
     Money market accounts  656,836  672,577 
     Savings  7,600  10,343 
     Certificates of deposit:     
          $100k and over  528,776  347,318 
          Other  151,214  145,320 
               Total deposits  1,688,053  1,585,012 
Subordinated debentures  59,307  56,807 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances  222,926  152,901 
Federal funds purchased  36,600  - 
Other borrowings  18,632  10,680 
Notes payable  18,000  6,000 
Accrued interest liability  2,621  3,710 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  5,303  10,859 
               Total liabilities  2,051,442  1,825,969 
 
Shareholders' equity:     
     Common stock, $.01 par value;     
          30,000,000 shares authorized; 12,769,996 and     
          12,482,357 shares issued, respectively  128  125 
     Treasury stock, at cost; 76,000 shares  (1,743)  (1,743)

     Additional paid in capital  109,743  104,127 
     Retained earnings  76,549  70,523 
     Accumulated other comprehensive income  282  117 
               Total shareholders' equity  184,959  173,149 
 
               Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 2,236,401 $ 1,999,118 

See accompanying notes to consolidated unaudited financial statements
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ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited)

 Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

(In thousands, except per share data)     2008     2007     2008     2007

Interest income:         
     Interest and fees on loans $ 27,859 $ 30,415 $ 84,591 $ 86,542 
     Interest on debt and equity securities:         
          Taxable  1,248  1,139  3,536  3,398 
          Nontaxable   7  9  23  25 
     Interest on federal funds sold  21  93  200  230 
     Interest on interest-bearing deposits  9  15  51  47 
     Dividends on equity securities  145  136  417  358 
          Total interest income               29,289               31,807               88,818               90,600 
Interest expense:          
     Interest-bearing transaction accounts  359  803  1,301  2,363 
     Money market accounts  3,165  6,037  11,288  17,509 
     Savings  11  37  47  96 



     Certificates of deposit:         
          $100 and over  4,757  4,854  13,137  13,674 
          Other  1,472  2,098  4,807  5,912 
     Subordinated debentures  805  1,038  2,551  2,822 
     Federal Home Loan Bank advances  1,759  1,042  5,288  3,024 
     Notes payable and other borrowings  377  93  874  350 
          Total interest expense  12,705  16,002  39,293  45,750 
          Net interest income  16,584  15,805  49,525  44,850 
Provision for loan loss  2,825  600  8,350  2,165 
     Net interest income after provision for loan losses  13,759  15,205  41,175  42,685 
Noninterest income:         
     Wealth Management revenue  2,640  3,495  7,905  9,916 
     Service charges on deposit accounts  1,102  839  3,241  2,302 
     Other service charges and fee income  263  225  834  675 
     Gain on sale of branches/charter  2,840  -  3,400  - 
     Gain (loss) on sale of other real estate  242  7  584  (5)

     Gain on state tax credits  593  33  1,577  33 
     Gain on sale of securities  -  -  73  - 
     Miscellaneous (loss) income  (39)  39  8  521 
          Total noninterest income  7,641  4,638  17,622  13,442 
Noninterest expense:         
     Employee compensation and benefits  7,792  7,523  23,706  21,972 
     Occupancy  1,100  995  3,160  2,898 
     Furniture and equipment  346  370  1,065  1,055 
     Data processing  562  488  1,647  1,403 
     Meals and entertainment  385  303  1,091  1,191 
     Amortization of intangibles  348  410  1,102  1,194 
     Goodwill impairment related to Millennium Brokerage Group  5,900  -  5,900  - 
     Other  2,700  2,113  8,018  6,720 
          Total noninterest expense  19,133  12,202  45,689  36,433 
 
Income before income tax expense  2,267  7,641  13,108  19,694 
     Income tax expense  948  2,642  4,726  7,022 
Net income $ 1,319 $ 4,999 $ 8,382 $ 12,672 
 
Per share amounts:         
     Basic earnings per share $ 0.10 $ 0.40 $ 0.67 $ 1.04 
          Basic weighted average common shares outstanding  12,664  12,380  12,550  12,189 
 
     Diluted earnings per share $ 0.10 $ 0.40 $ 0.66 $ 1.01 
          Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding  12,817  12,652  12,749  12,522 

See accompanying notes to consolidated unaudited financial statements
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ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity (Unaudited)

      Accumulated  
      other Total

 Common stock Treasury stock Additional paid Retained comprehensive shareholders'

(in thousands, except shares)   Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   in capital   earnings   income (loss)   equity

Balance December 31, 2007 12,482,357 $ 125 76,000 $ (1,743)  $ 104,127 $ 70,523  $ 117 $ 173,149 
Cumulative effect of adoption of SFAS No. 159 (see Note 9) -  - - -  - (365)  -  (365)



Balance January 1, 2008 12,482,357  125 76,000 (1,743)  104,127 70,158  117  172,784 
Comprehensive income:            
     Net income -  - - -  - 8,382  - 8,382 
     Change in fair value of available for sale securities, net of tax -  - - -   - -  212  212 
     Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in             
          net income, net of tax             (47) (47)

Total comprehensive income              8,547 
Cash dividends declared ($0.1575 per share) -  - -  -  - (1,991)  - (1,991)

Issuance under equity compensation plans, net 287,639  3 - -  3,415 -  -  3,418 
Share-based compensation -  - - -  1,435 -  - 1,435 
Excess tax benefit related to equity compensation plans        766 -    766 
Balance September 30, 2008      12,769,996 $         128         76,000 $     (1,743)  $      109,743 $      76,549  $           282 $     184,959 

See accompanying notes to consolidated unaudited financial statements.

 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)

 Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

(in thousands)     2008     2007     2008     2007

Net income $ 1,319 $ 4,999 $ 8,382 $ 12,672

Other comprehensive income:         
     Unrealized gain on investment securities           
          arising during the period, net of tax   228  410  212  519

     Less reclassification adjustment for realized gain          
          on sale of securities included in net income, net of tax     -     -  (47)  -

Total other comprehensive income  228  410  165  519

Total comprehensive income $          1,547 $          5,409 $          8,547 $         13,191

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

 Nine months ended September 30,

(in thousands)      2008      2007

Cash flows from operating activities:     
     Net income $ 8,382 $ 12,672 
     Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash     
     from operating activities:     
          Depreciation  1,927  1,806 
          Provision for loan losses  8,350  2,165 
          Net amortization (accretion) of debt and equity securities  351  (139)

          Amortization of intangible assets  1,102  1,194 
          Mortgage loans originated  (39,126)  (66,825)

          Proceeds from mortgage loans sold  42,096  68,539 
          (Gain) loss on sale of other real estate  (584)  5 
          Gain on state tax credits  (1,577)   (33)

          Excess tax benefits of share-based compensation  (766)  (340)

          Share-based compensation  1,435  1,210 
          Gain on sale of branches/charter  (3,400)  - 
          Goodwill impairment related to Millennium Brokerage Group  5,900   



          Changes in:     
               Accrued interest receivable   328  (702)

               Accrued interest payable and other liabilities  (4,092)  (2,025)

               Other, net  (3,727)  (1,947)

               Net cash provided by operating activities  16,599  15,580 
 
Cash flows from investing activities:     
     Cash paid in sale of branch  (6,174)  - 
     Cash paid in sale of charter, net of cash and cash equivalents received  (14,562)  - 
     Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash and cash equivalents received  -  (7,873)

     Net increase in loans  (323,568)  (82,270)

     Proceeds from the sale/maturity/redemption/recoveries of:     
          Debt and equity securities, available for sale  47,309  51,500 
          State tax credits held for sale  1,668  - 
          Other real estate  7,509  4,878 
          Loans previously charged off  263  278 
     Payments for the purchase/origination of:     
          Available for sale debt and equity securities  (84,228)  (42,853)

          Limited partnership interests  (5,161)  (929)

          State tax credits held for sale  (15,271)  - 
          Fixed assets  (6,480)  (2,985)

               Net cash used in investing activities         (398,695)         (80,254)

 
Cash flows from financing activities:     
     Net decrease in noninterest-bearing deposit accounts  (51,216)  (37,097)

     Net increase in interest-bearing deposit accounts  190,929  17,069 
     Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debentures  2,500  18,557 
     Paydown of subordinated debentures  -  (4,124)

     Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances  1,579,372  1,035,325 
     Repayments of Federal Home Loan Bank advances  (1,509,347)  (960,155)

     Proceeds from federal funds purchased  36,600  - 
     Net increase (decrease) in other borrowings  7,953  (3,144)

     Proceeds from notes payable  15,000  2,750 
     Repayments on notes payable  (3,000)  (2,750)

     Cash dividends paid on common stock  (1,991)  (1,987)

     Excess tax benefits of share-based compensation  766  340 
     Issuance of common stock under director stock plan  97  131 
     Repurchase of common stock  -  (642)

     Proceeds from the exercise of common stock options  3,321  1,386 
               Net cash provided by financing activities  270,984  65,659 
               Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (111,112)  985 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  153,649  50,293 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 42,537 $ 51,278 
 
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:     
     Cash paid during the period for:     
          Interest $ 40,382 $ 45,062 
          Income taxes  7,456  6,235 
     Noncash transactions:     
          Common stock issued for acquisitions $ -  22,482 
          Transfer to other real estate owned in settlement of loans  14,420  3,457 

See accompanying notes to consolidated unaudited financial statements.
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ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Unaudited Financial Statements

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The more significant accounting policies used by the Company in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are summarized below:

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation
Enterprise Financial  Services Corp (the “Company” or “EFSC”) is a financial  holding company that provides a full  range of banking and wealth
management services  to individuals  and corporate  customers  located in the  St.  Louis  and Kansas  City metropolitan markets  through its  banking
subsidiary, Enterprise Bank & Trust (“Enterprise”.) Enterprise also operates a loan production office in Phoenix, Arizona. The Company has filed a
charter application with the State of Arizona for a de novo bank in Phoenix. In addition, the Company owns 100% of Millennium Brokerage Group,
LLC (“Millennium”) through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Millennium Holding Company, Inc. Millennium is headquartered in Nashville, Tennessee
and operates life insurance advisory and brokerage operations from fourteen offices serving life agents, banks, CPA firms, property and casualty
groups, and financial advisors in 49 states. On July 31, 2008, the Company sold its remaining interests in Great American Bank (“Great American”.)
See Note 2 – Dispositions for more information.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (“U.S. GAAP”) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. They do not
include  all  information and footnotes  required  by U.S.  GAAP for  complete  financial  statements.  In the  opinion of management,  all  adjustments
(consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included.

The  consolidated  financial  statements  include  the  accounts  of  the  Company,  Enterprise,  Millennium and  Great  American (through the  date  of
disposition.)  Acquired  businesses  are  included in the  consolidated  financial  statements  from the  date  of acquisition.  All  material  intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Operating results for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for
any other interim period or for the year ending December 31, 2008. For further information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and footnotes
thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. Certain reclassifications have been made to
prior year balances to conform to the current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on previously reported consolidated net income or
shareholders’ equity.

New Accounting Standards
In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations — a replacement of FASB
No. 141 (“SFAS 141R”.) SFAS 141R replaces SFAS 141, Business Combination (“SFAS 141”) and applies to all transaction and other events in
which one entity obtains control over one or more other businesses. SFAS 141R requires an acquirer, upon initially obtaining control of another entity,
to recognize the assets, liabilities and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at fair value as of the acquisition date. Contingent consideration is
required to be recognized and measured at fair value on the date of acquisition rather than at a later date when the amount of that consideration may be
determinable beyond a reasonable doubt. This fair value approach replaces the cost-allocation process required under SFAS 141 whereby the cost of
an acquisition was allocated to the individual  assets  acquired and liabilities  assumed based on their  estimated fair  value.  SFAS 141R requires
acquirers to expense acquisition-related costs as incurred rather  than allocating such costs to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as was
previously the case under SFAS 141. Under SFAS 141R, the requirements of SFAS 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities, would have to be met in order to accrue for a restructuring plan in purchase accounting. Pre-acquisition contingencies are to be recognized
at fair  value, unless it is  a non-contractual  contingency that is  not likely to materialize, in which case, nothing should be recognized in purchase
accounting  and,  instead,  that  contingency  would  be  subject  to  the  probable  and  estimable  recognition  criteria  of  SFAS  5,  Accounting  for
Contingencies. SFAS 141R is expected to have an impact on the Company’s accounting for business combinations closing on or after January 1, 2009.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements - an amendment of ARB No. 51
(“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 amends Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” to establish accounting and reporting
standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 also clarifies that a noncontrolling
interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements.
SFAS 160 requires consolidated net income to be reported at amounts that include the amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling
interest. Prior to SFAS 160, net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest generally was reported as an expense or other deduction in arriving at
consolidated net income. Additional disclosures are required as a result of SFAS 160 to clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the
parent’s owners and the interests of the noncontrolling owners of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that SFAS 160 may have on its future consolidated financial statements.

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157”), and SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“SFAS 159”.) SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 159 permits the Company to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at specified election
dates. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value measurement option (“FVO”) has been elected are reported in earnings at each
subsequent reporting date. The fair value option (i) may be applied instrument by instrument, with certain exceptions, thus the Company may record
identical financial assets and liabilities at fair value or by another measurement basis permitted under generally accepted accounting principles, (ii) is
irrevocable (unless a new election date occurs) and (iii) is applied only to entire instruments and not to portions of instruments. The effect of the



re-measurement was reported as a cumulative-effect adjustment, which reduced opening retained earnings on January 1, 2008, by $365,000. Upon
adoption, the Company elected to account for $23 million of state tax credit assets at fair value. See Note 9 – Fair Value Measurements for more
information.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161,  Disclosures about  Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities — an Amendment of  FASB
Statement No. 133 (“SFAS 161”.) SFAS 161 expands disclosure requirements regarding an entity’s derivative instruments and hedging activities.
Expanded qualitative disclosures that will  be required under SFAS 161 include: (1) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments; (2) how
derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,
and related interpretations; and (3) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows. SFAS 161 also requires several added quantitative disclosures in financial statements. SFAS 161 will be effective for the Company on
January 1, 2009. Management is currently evaluating the effect that the provisions of SFAS 161 will have on the Company’s financial statements.

In October 2008, the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS No. 157-3, Determining the Fair Value of a
Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active (“FSP FAS 157-3”.) The FSP clarifies the application of SFAS 157, Fair Value
Measurements, in a market that is not active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value of a financial asset
when the market for that financial asset is not active. The FSP is effective immediately, and includes prior period financial statements that have not yet
been issued, and therefore the Company is subject to the provision of the FSP effective September 30, 2008. The implementation of FSP FAS 157-3
did not affect the Company’s fair value measurement as of September 30, 2008.

NOTE 2—DISPOSITIONS

Sale of Liberty Branch
On February 28, 2008, the Company sold its Enterprise banking branch located in Liberty, Missouri to Farmers Bank & Trust, NA of Great Bend,
Kansas, an unaffiliated bank. Deposit liabilities of $7,358,000 were sold along with approximately $158,000 of fixed assets. Goodwill  and core
deposit intangibles related to Liberty of $97,000 and $269,000, respectively, were written off on the sale date. The pre-tax gain on the sale (after
write-offs) was $550,000 (including post closing expenses incurred in the second and third quarters of 2008.) The sale generated an after-tax gain of
$315,000.

Great American Transactions
On June 26, 2008, the Company transferred the assets and deposit liabilities of the Great American Claycomo branch along with certain other assets
and liabilities of Great American to Enterprise. Approximately $168,000,000 of assets and $126,000,000 of liabilities were transferred to Enterprise.

On July 31, 2008, the Company sold the Great American bank charter and its remaining DeSoto branch to First Financial Bancshares, Inc. (“First
Financial”), an unaffiliated bank holding company, for $6,500,000. The shareholders’ equity of the Great American charter on the date of the sale was
$2,500,000, comprised of approximately $33,000,000 in assets and $30,500,000 in liabilities. Goodwill and core deposit intangibles related to Great
American of $680,000 and $336,000, respectively, were written off on the sale date. The pre-tax gain on the sale (after write-offs) was $2,850,000.
The sale generated an after-tax gain of $1.5 million.
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NOTE 3—EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share data is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution of earnings per share which could occur under the treasury stock method if contracts to issue
common stock, such as stock options, were exercised. The following table presents a summary of per share data and amounts for the periods indicated.

 Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

(in thousands, except per share data)      2008      2007      2008      2007
Net income, as reported $ 1,319 $ 4,999 $ 8,382 $ 12,672

 
Weighted average common shares outstanding  12,664  12,380  12,550  12,189

Additional dilutive common stock equivalents  153  272  198  333

Diluted shares outstanding           12,817          12,652          12,749          12,522

 
Basic earnings per share $ 0.10 $ 0.40 $ 0.67 $ 1.04
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.10 $ 0.40 $ 0.66 $ 1.01

For the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, approximately 488,000 and 376,000 common stock equivalents, respectively, were excluded
from the earnings per share calculation because their effect was anti-dilutive. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, approximately
338,000  and  24,000  common stock equivalents,  respectively,  were  excluded  from the  earnings  per  share  calculation because  their  effect  was
anti-dilutive.

NOTE 4—GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS



The Company tested intangible assets related to Millennium for impairment in conformity with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, as of September 30, 2008 and determined that there was no impairment at those dates. The intangible assets related to
Millennium are related to their customer lists and tradename, which are carried at $1,873,000 and $217,000, respectively, as of September 30, 2008.

Due primarily to continued pressures in the sales margin and resulting earnings of Millennium, the Company’s wholesale insurance brokerage business,
the Company evaluated the goodwill associated with Millennium in accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. This
analysis determined that the carrying value of the reporting unit was higher than the fair value of the reporting unit, which resulted in a third quarter
pre-tax, non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $5,900,000. This charge did not reduce the Company’s regulatory capital, cash flow or liquidity.

The Company evaluates the goodwill associated with our banking segment as of December 31 each year.

The tables below present an analysis of the goodwill and intangible activity for the periods presented.

(in thousands)     Goodwill
Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 57,177 
     Acquisition-related adjustments (1)  812 
     Goodwill write-off related to sale of Liberty branch  (97)
     Goodwill write-off related to sale of DeSoto branch  (680)
     Goodwill impairment related to Millennium Brokerage Group  (5,900)

Balance at September 30, 2008 $          51,312 

(1)     Includes  additional  purchase  accounting adjustments  on the  Millennium and  Great  American acquisitions  necessary to  reflect  additional
valuation data since the respective acquisition dates.
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Customer and
Trade Name Core Deposit

(in thousands)      Intangibles      Intangible      Net Intangible
Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 2,724 $ 3,329 $ 6,053
       Intangible write-off related to sale of Liberty branch - (269) (269)
       Intangible write-off related to sale of DeSoto branch - (336) (336)
       Amortization expense (634) (468)        (1,102)
Balance at September 30, 2008 $        2,090 $        2,256 $ 4,346

The following table reflects the expected amortization schedule for the customer, trade name and core deposit intangibles (in thousands) at September
30, 2008.

Year      Amount
Remaining 2008 $ 342

2009 1,327
2010  1,265
2011 371
2012 309

After 2013 732
$ 4,346

NOTE 5—DISCLOSURES ABOUT FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s extent of involvement and maximum potential exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of these instruments. The Company
uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for financial  instruments included on its consolidated
balance sheets. At September 30, 2008, no amounts have been accrued for any estimated losses for these financial instruments.

The bank issues financial instruments with off balance sheet risk in the normal course of the business of meeting the financing needs of its customers.
These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These instruments may involve, to varying degrees,
elements of credit and interest-rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.



The contractual amount of off-balance-sheet financial instruments as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 are as follows:

September 30, December 31,
(in thousands)      2008      2007
Commitments to extend credit $        546,201 $       535,227
Standby letters of credit 34,324 36,464

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract.
Commitments usually have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Of the total commitments to extend
credit  at  September  30,  2008  and  December  31,  2007,  approximately $116,000,000  and  $61,200,000,  respectively,  represent  fixed  rate  loan
commitments. Since certain of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future
cash requirements. The bank evaluates each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral  obtained, if deemed
necessary by each bank upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral held varies, but may include
accounts receivable, inventory, premises and equipment, and real estate.
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Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by Enterprise to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. These standby
letters of credit are issued to support contractual obligations of the bank’s customers. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially
the same as the risk involved in extending loans to customers. The approximate remaining term of standby letters of credit range from 6 months to 5
years at September 30, 2008.

NOTE 6—SEGMENT REPORTING

The segments are evaluated separately on their individual performance, as well as, their contribution to the Company as a whole. The Banking segment
consists of all  banking operations including Enterprise and Great American (through the date of its disposition.) The Wealth Management segment
includes  the Trust division of Enterprise,  the state  tax credit initiative, and Millennium. The Trust division provides estate  planning,  investment
management, and retirement planning as well as consulting on management compensation, strategic planning and management succession issues. State
tax credits are part of a new fee initiative designed to augment the Company’s wealth management and banking lines of business. In the fourth quarter of
2007, the Company executed an agreement whereby it will purchase the rights to receive ten-year streams of state tax credits at agreed upon discount
rates and then resell them to its clients for a profit. Millennium operates life insurance advisory and brokerage operations from fourteen offices serving
life agents, banks, CPA firms, and financial advisors in 49 states. The Corporate segment includes parent-only matters and incurs general corporate
expenses.

In the third quarter of 2008, the Company recorded a pre-tax goodwill impairment charge of $5,900,000 related to Millennium. See Note 4 – Goodwill
and intangible assets for more information.

The financial  information for each business segment reflects that information which is specifically identifiable or which is allocated based on an
internal  allocation method. There were no material  intersegment revenues  among the three segments.  Management periodically makes changes to
methods of assigning costs and income to its business segments to better reflect operating results. If appropriate, these changes are reflected in prior
year information presented below.
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Following are the financial results for the Company’s operating segments.

Wealth Corporate and

(in thousands)      Banking      Management      Intercompany      Total

Balance Sheet Information At September 30, 2008

       Loans, less unearned loan fees $ 1,942,600 $ - $ - $           1,942,600

       Goodwill  45,378 5,934  - 51,312

       Intangibles, net 2,256 2,090 - 4,346

       Deposits   1,690,468 - (2,415) 1,688,053

       Borrowings 280,658 -            74,807  355,465

       Total assets           2,179,462            47,631 9,308 2,236,401

 
At December 31, 2007

       Loans, less unearned loan fees $ 1,641,432 $ - $ - $ 1,641,432

       Goodwill 45,379 11,798 - 57,177

       Intangibles, net 3,330 2,723 - 6,053



       Deposits 1,588,963 - (3,951) 1,585,012

       Borrowings 163,581 - 62,807 226,388

       Total assets 1,952,495 42,542 4,081 1,999,118

 
Income Statement Information Three months ended September 30, 2008

       Net interest income $ 17,817 $ (295) $ (938) $ 16,584

       Provision for loan losses 2,825 - - 2,825

       Noninterest income 4,394 3,233 14 7,641

       Noninterest expense 9,542 8,785 806 19,133

       Income (loss) before income tax expense 9,844 (5,847) (1,730) 2,267

       Income tax expense (benefit) 3,706 (2,128) (630) 948

       Net income (loss) $ 6,138 $ (3,719) $ (1,100) $ 1,319

 
Three months ended September 30, 2007

       Net interest income $ 16,811 $ 35 $ (1,041) $ 15,805

       Provision for loan losses 600 - - 600

       Noninterest income 1,067 3,540 31 4,638

       Noninterest expense 8,927 2,447 828 12,202

       Income (loss) before income tax expense 8,351 1,128 (1,838) 7,641

       Income tax expense (benefit) 3,086 406 (850) 2,642

       Net income (loss) $ 5,265 $ 722 $ (988) $ 4,999

 
Nine months ended September 30, 2008

       Net interest income $ 53,055 $ (766) $ (2,764) $ 49,525

       Provision for loan losses 8,350 - - 8,350

       Noninterest income 7,928 9,483 211 17,622

       Noninterest expense 28,408 14,687 2,594 45,689

       Income (loss) before income tax expense 24,225 (5,970) (5,147) 13,108

       Income tax expense (benefit) 8,773 (2,173) (1,874) 4,726

       Net income (loss) $ 15,452 $ (3,797) $ (3,273) $ 8,382

 
Nine months ended September 30, 2007

       Net interest income $ 47,633 $ 97 $ (2,880) $ 44,850

       Provision for loan losses 2,165 - - 2,165

       Noninterest income 3,141 9,961 340 13,442

       Non interest expense 25,987 7,937 2,509 36,433

       Income (loss) before income tax expense 22,622 2,121 (5,049) 19,694

       Income tax expense (benefit) 8,279 764 (2,021) 7,022

       Net income (loss) $ 14,343 $ 1,357 $ (3,028) $ 12,672

NOTE 7—DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Enterprise  utilizes  derivative  financial  instruments  to  manage  its  interest rate  risks  from certain recorded financial  assets  and liabilities.  These
derivatives are utilized when they can be demonstrated to effectively hedge a designated asset or liability and such asset or liability exposes Enterprise
to interest rate risk. The accounting policies associated with derivative financial  instruments are discussed further  in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.
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Enterprise accounts for its derivatives under SFAS No. 149, An Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities and
SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. These Standards require recognition of all derivatives as either assets
or liabilities in the balance sheet and require measurement of those instruments at fair  value through adjustments to other comprehensive income,
current earnings, or both, as appropriate.

Fair Value Hedges
Previously, Enterprise entered into interest rate swap agreements to convert the fixed interest rate on certain CDs to a variable interest rate.  At



September 30, 2008, Enterprise had no outstanding fair value hedges.

Non-Designated Hedges
Enterprise has entered into interest rate swap agreements with the objective of converting long-term fixed rates on certain loans to a variable interest
rate. At September 30, 2008, Enterprise had four outstanding non-designated hedges with a notional amount of $17,718,000. The non-designated hedges
and related loans are accounted for at fair value. All changes in fair value are measured on a quarterly basis. The net change in fair value of the hedge
and related loans decreased interest income by $12,000 and $53,000 in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively. The net
change in fair value of the hedge and related loans decreased interest income by $6,400 and $10,300 in the three and nine months ended September 30,
2007, respectively.

The swap agreements provide for Enterprise to pay a fixed rate of interest equal to that of the loan and to receive a variable rate of interest based on a
spread to one-month LIBOR. Under the swap agreements Enterprise is to pay or receive interest monthly. The net cash flows related to these hedges
decreased interest income on loans by $70,000 and $119,000 in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively. Net cash flows
related to these hedges for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 were immaterial.

The following table summarizes Enterprise’s derivative financial instruments at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

September 30, December 31,
(in thousands)      2008      2007
Non-Designated Hedges  
Notional amount $       17,718 $        5,397
Weighted average pay rate 6.30% 8.31%
Weighted average receive rate 6.28% 7.60%
Weighted average maturity in months 56 69 

The notional  amounts of derivative financial  instruments do not represent amounts exchanged by the parties, and therefore, are not a measure of
Enterprise’s credit exposure through its use of these instruments. The credit exposure represents the accounting loss Enterprise would incur in the event
the counterparties failed completely to perform according to the terms of the derivative financial instruments and the collateral held to support the
credit exposure was of no value. At September 30, 2008 and 2007, Enterprise had not pledged securities or received collateral in connection with the
interest rate swap agreement.
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NOTE 8—SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company maintains a number of share-based incentive programs, which are discussed in more detail in Note 17 of the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. The share-based compensation expense that was charged against income was $631,000 and
$1,532,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007, the
share-based compensation expense charged against income was $577,000 and $1,321,000, respectively.

The fair value of the stock options granted in the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following average assumptions:

Nine months ended
     September 30, 2008

Risk-free interest rate 3.9%
Expected dividend rate 0.6%
Expected volatility 39.4%
Expected term 6 years

Employee Stock Options and Stock-settled Stock Appreciation Rights (“SSAR”)
At September 30, 2008, there was $2,375,000 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options and SSAR’s, which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 3.8 years. Following is a summary of the employee stock option and SSAR activity for the first nine
months of 2008.

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

(Dollars in thousands, except share data)      Shares      Price      Term      Value



Outstanding at December 31, 2007 891,816 $           15.42
Granted 305,198 19.79
Exercised           (258,779) 11.85
Forfeited  (75,783) 25.53
Outstanding at September 30, 2008 862,452 $ 17.15           6.8 years $          4,667

Exercisable at September 30, 2008 446,483 $ 13.27 4.2 years $ 4,148

Vested and expected to vest at September 30, 2008 800,438 $ 16.62 6.8 years $ 4,756

Restricted Stock Units (“RSU”)
At September 30, 2008, there was $3,455,000 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to the RSU’s, which is expected to be recognized over
a weighted average period of 3.2 years. A summary of the Company's restricted stock unit activity for the first nine months of 2008 is presented below.

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
     Shares      Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2007 168,286 $ 23.74
Granted 95,067 21.39
Vested - -
Forfeited (38,272) 23.40
Outstanding at September 30, 2008 225,081 $ 22.81
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Stock Plan for Non-Management Directors
The Company recognized $0 and $97,000 of stock-based compensation expense for the directors for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2008, respectively. Shares are issued twice a year and compensation expense is recorded as the shares are earned, therefore, there is no unrecognized
compensation expense related to this plan. The Company recognized $33,000 and $111,000 of stock-based compensation expense for the directors for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007, respectively. Pursuant to this plan, the Company issued 4,434 and 4,358 shares in the first nine
months of 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Moneta Plan
As of December 31, 2006, the fair value of all Moneta options had been expensed. As a result, there have been no option-related expenses for Moneta
in 2008 or 2007. Following is a summary of the Moneta stock option activity for the first nine months of 2008.

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

(Dollars in thousands, except share data)      Shares      Price      Term      Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 137,098 $ 12.62
Granted - -
Exercised (24,426) 10.35
Forfeited  (4,169) 15.32 
Outstanding at September 30, 2008 108,503 $ 13.03 1.3 years $ 1,034

Exercisable at September 30, 2008 108,503  $ 13.03 1.3 years $ 1,034

Vested and expected to vest at September 30, 2008 108,503 $ 13.03 1.3 years $ 1,034

NOTE 9—FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, for financial assets and financial liabilities. In accordance
with FSP No. 157-2, Effective Date of  FASB Statement  No. 157,  the Company will  delay application of SFAS 157 for non-financial  assets and
non-financial liabilities, until January 1, 2009. SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted
accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.



SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants. A fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability occurs in the principal market for the asset
or  liability or, in the absence of a principal  market, the most advantageous market for  the asset or  liability. The price in the principal  (or  most
advantageous) market used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability shall not be adjusted for transaction costs. An orderly transaction is a
transaction that assumes exposure to the market for a period prior to the measurement date to allow for marketing activities that are usual and customary
for transactions involving such assets and liabilities; it is not a forced transaction. Market participants are buyers and sellers in the principal market
that are (i) independent, (ii) knowledgeable, (iii) able to transact and (iv) willing to transact.

SFAS 157 requires the use of valuation techniques that are consistent with the market approach, the income approach and/or the cost approach. The
market approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets and liabilities.
The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts, such as cash flows or earnings, to a single present amount on a discounted
basis. The cost approach is based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost).
Valuation techniques should be consistently applied. Inputs to valuation techniques refer  to the assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability. Inputs may be observable, meaning those that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability developed based on market data obtained from independent sources, or unobservable, meaning those that reflect the reporting entity's own
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in
the circumstances. In that regard, SFAS 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:
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Level 1 Inputs - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access
at the measurement date.
 
Level 2 Inputs - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
These might include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (such as interest rates,
volatilities, prepayment speeds, credit risks, etc.) or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by market data by correlation
or other means.
 
Level 3 Inputs - Unobservable inputs for determining the fair values of assets or liabilities that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities.

In general, fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where available. If such quoted market prices are not available, fair value is based upon
internally developed models that primarily use, as inputs, observable market-based parameters. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that
financial  instruments  are  recorded  at  fair  value.  These  adjustments  may include  amounts  to  reflect  counterparty credit  quality,  the  Company's
creditworthiness, among other things, as well as unobservable parameters. Any such valuation adjustments are applied consistently over time. The
Company's valuation methodologies may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair
values. While management believes the Company's valuation methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value at the
reporting date. These valuation methodologies were applied to all  of the Company's financial  assets and financial  liabilities carried at fair  value
effective January 1, 2008.

Securities available for sale. Securities classified as available for sale are reported at fair value utilizing Level 2 and Level 3 inputs. The Company
obtains fair value measurements from an independent pricing service. The fair value measurements consider observable data that may include dealer
quotes, market spreads, cash flows, the U.S. Treasury yield curve, live trading levels, trade execution data, market consensus prepayment speeds,
credit information and the bond's terms and conditions. Level 3 securities available for sale include a Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation pool.
Membership stock in the Federal Home Loan Banks (“FHLB”) and the Federal Reserve are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.

Portfolio Loans. Certain fixed rate portfolio loans are accounted for as trading instruments and reported at fair value. Fair value on these loans is
determined using a third party valuation model with observable Level 2 market data inputs.

State tax credits held for sale. These assets are reported at fair value utilizing Level 2 inputs. The fair value measurement is calculated using an
internal valuation model with observable market data including discounted cash flows based upon the terms and conditions of the tax credits.

Derivatives. Derivatives are reported at fair value utilizing Level 2 inputs. The Company obtains counterparty quotations to value its fixed-rate loan
swaps. In addition, the Company validates the counterparty quotations with third party valuation sources. Derivatives with negative fair values are
included in Accounts payable and other accrued expenses in the consolidated balance sheets. Derivatives with positive fair value are included in
Prepaid expenses and other assets in the consolidated balance sheets.
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The following table summarizes financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2008, segregated by the level of
the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair



(in thousands)      Inputs      Inputs      Inputs      Value
Assets
       Securities available for sale $                      - $          110,108 $          3,824 $          113,932
       State tax credits held for sale - 37,751 - 37,751
       Portfolio loans - 17,819 - 17,819
Total assets $ - $ 165,678 $ 3,824 $ 169,502

 
Liabilities
       Derivative financial instruments $ - $ 155 $ - $ -
Total liabilities $ - $ 155 $ - $ -

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value as of September 30, 2008.

Available for sale
securities, at fair

(in thousands)      value
For the three months ended September 30, 2008:  
Balance at June 30, 2008 $ 3,914
       Total gains or losses (realized and unrealized):
              Included in earnings -
              Included in other comprehensive income (47)
       Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, net (43)
       Transfer in and/or out of Level 3 -
Balance at September 30, 2008 $ 3,824

 
Change in unrealized gains or losses relating to
assets still held at the reporting date $ (47)

 
For the nine months ended September 30, 2008:
Balance at January 1, 2008 $ -
       Total gains or losses (realized and unrealized):
              Included in earnings -
              Included in other comprehensive income 31
       Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, net 6,501
       Transfer in and/or out of Level 3 (2,708)
Balance at September 30, 2008 $ 3,824

 
Change in unrealized gains or losses relating to
assets still held at the reporting date $ 31

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis; that is, the instruments are not measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment).

Loans held for sale. These loans are reported at the lower of cost or fair value. Fair value is determined based on expected proceeds based on
sales contracts and commitments and are considered Level 2 inputs.
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Impaired loans. Impaired loans are included as Portfolio loans on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet with amounts specifically reserved for
credit impairment in the Allowance for loan losses. The fair value of impaired loans is based on underlying collateral. These assets are classified as
Level 2.

Other Real Estate. These assets are reported at the lower of the loan carrying amount at foreclosure or fair value less estimated costs to sell. Fair
value is based on third party appraisals of each property and the Company’s judgment of other relevant market conditions. These are considered
Level 2 inputs.



The following table presents the financial instruments measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of September 30, 2008.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair
(in thousands)      Input      Input      Input      Value
Loans held for sale $ - $ 520 $ - $ 520
Impaired loans -  23,546  - 23,546
Other real estate - 11,285 - 11,285
Total $ - $ 35,351 $ - $ 35,351

Certain non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis include reporting units measured at fair value in the
first step of a goodwill impairment test. Certain non-financial assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis include non-financial assets and
non-financial liabilities measured at fair value in the second step of a goodwill impairment test, as well as intangible assets and other non-financial
long-lived assets measured at fair value for impairment assessment. As stated above, SFAS 157 will be applicable to these fair value measurements
beginning January 1, 2009.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for  Financial  Assets  and Financial
Liabilities - Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. At September 30, 2008, all state tax credits held for sale are accounted for at fair
value to better reflect the economic benefits of this asset class to the Company. Changes in the fair value of the state tax credits held for sale of
$413,000 and $1,200,000 were reported in Gain (loss) on state tax credits in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2008, respectively. There were no valuation allowances related to the state tax credits held for sale that were impacted by the
adoption of SFAS 159. Below is a summary of the impact of the initial implementation of the FVO.

January 1, 2008
December 31, 2007 Cumulative effect of fair value (carrying
(carrying value prior adjustment at value after

(in thousands)      to adoption)      January 1, 2008      adoption)
State tax credits held for sale $ 23,117 $ (570) $ 22,547
Pretax cumulative effect of adoption of the fair value option (570)
Increase in deferred tax asset 205
Cumulative effect of adoption of the fair value option
       (charge to retained earnings) $ (365)

NOTE 10—SUBORDINATED DEBT

On September 30, 2008, Enterprise completed a $2,500,000 private placement of subordinated capital notes. The notes mature in 2018, pay a fixed rate
of interest at 10%, and are callable by Enterprise in five years.
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ITEM 2: MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Readers should note that in addition to the historical  information contained herein, some of  the information in this report  contains forward-
looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws. Forward-looking statements typically are identified with use of terms such as
“may,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “potential,” “could”:  and similar  words, although some forward-looking statements are
expressed differently. You should be aware that the Company’s actual results could differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking
statements due to a number of factors, including: burdens imposed by federal and state regulation, changes in accounting regulation or standards
of banks; credit risk; exposure to general and local economic conditions; risks associated with rapid increase or decrease in prevailing interest
rates;  consolidation within  the  banking industry;  competition from banks  and other  financial  institutions;  our  ability  to  attract  and retain
relationship officers and other key personnel and technological developments; and other risks discussed in more detail in Item 1A: “Risk Factors”
on Form 10-K, all of which could cause the Company’s actual results to differ from those set forth in the forward-looking statements.

Our acquisitions could cause results to differ from expected results due to costs and expenses that are greater, or benefits that are less, than we
currently anticipate, or the assumption of unanticipated liabilities.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements, which reflect management’s analysis only as of the date of
the statements. The Company does not intend to publicly revise or update forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise
after  the  date  of  this  report.  Readers  should  carefully  review all  disclosures  we  file  from time  to  time  with  the  Securities  and  Exchange
Commission which are available on our website at www.enterprisebank.com.



Introduction
The following discussion describes the significant changes to the financial condition of the Company that have occurred during the first nine months of
2008 compared to the  financial  condition as  of December  31,  2007.  In addition,  this  discussion summarizes  the significant factors  affecting the
consolidated results of operations, liquidity and cash flows of the Company for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the
same periods in 2007. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements included in this report
and our Annual Report of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Critical Accounting Policies
The  impact  and  any associated  risks  related  to  the  Company’s  critical  accounting policies  on business  operations  are  discussed  throughout
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” where such policies affect our reported and expected
financial results. For a detailed discussion on the application of these and other accounting policies, see the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The Company’s consolidated financial position reflects material amounts of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. Securities available
for sale and state tax credits held for sale are carried at fair value. The fair value of securities available for sale is based upon measurements from an
independent pricing service, including dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flows, the U.S. Treasury yield curve, live trading levels, trade execution
data and other information. Fair value of state tax credits held for sale is determined using an internal valuation model with observable market data
inputs. Considerable judgment may be required in determining the assumptions used in certain pricing models, including interest rate, credit risk and
liquidity risk assumptions. Changes in these assumptions may have a significant effect on values.

Information concerning recently issued accounting pronouncements, which are not yet effective, is included in Note 1. With the exception of SFAS
141R, the Company does not expect any of the recently issued accounting pronouncements to have a material effect on its financial condition. SFAS
141R is expected to have an impact on the Company’s accounting for business combinations closing on or after January 1, 2009.

Except as described in Note 9 – Fair  Value Measurements, management believes there have been no material  changes to our critical  accounting
policies.
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Executive Summary
Over the past few months, banks and financial institutions of all sizes have been impacted by adverse conditions in the housing and credit markets, and
recent bank failures have heightened awareness and concern regarding the safety and soundness of all banks. The Company, including its wholly owned
bank subsidiary, Enterprise, are “well-capitalized” under the regulatory guidelines. On September 30, 2008, Enterprise completed a $2.5 million
private placement of subordinated capital notes. We recently announced that our Board has authorized the addition of up to $62.0 million in regulatory
capital to support the Company’s continued growth. We are actively negotiating terms for the issuance of $25.0 million or more in Convertible Trust
Preferred Securities that will qualify as Tier II regulatory capital until they would convert to EFSC common stock. The Company also plans to file an
application to participate in the US Treasury Department’s recently announced bank capital purchase program as an additional source of regulatory
capital. Terms of any issues will be announced when completed. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” for more information.

We are concentrating our resources on growing our core banking and wealth management businesses and aggressively managing asset quality through
this credit cycle. The additional capital we are expecting to raise will bolster our already well-capitalized position, which will enable us to continue
our growth and also allow us to take advantage of opportunities that may emerge as a result of the current unsettled nature of the financial industry. In
addition, please note:

We did not participate in the origination of subprime or Alt-A loans.
 
We did not invest in securities that are secured by subprime loans.
 
We have no common or preferred Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) or Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie
Mac) stock.

Operating Results – Net income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 was $1.3 million and $8.4 million, a decrease of 74% and
34%, respectively, compared to $5.0 million and $12.7 million for the same periods in 2007. Fully diluted earnings per share for the three months
ended September 30, 2008 were $0.10, a 75% decrease from the same quarter of 2007. Fully diluted earnings per share for the first nine months of
2008 were $0.66, or down 35%, compared to $1.01 for the same period of 2007.

Third quarter  results  include a $5.9 million pre-tax, non-cash goodwill  impairment charge associated with Millennium, our  wholesale insurance
brokerage subsidiary. The after-tax effect of the charge was $0.29 per fully diluted share. The charge did not reduce the Company’s regulatory capital,
cash flow or liquidity. See Noninterest Expense and Note 4 – Goodwill and intangible assets for more information.

Our core banking business continues to perform well in light of the unprecedented turmoil in the financial markets and the continued deterioration of the
housing market. Enterprise, our banking subsidiary, earned $4.7 million and $13.1 million, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September
30, 2008, equaling the earnings levels for both the prior year quarter and year-to-date periods.

Absent the impairment charge and the previously reported gains on the sale of the Liberty branch and most recently, the Great American branch and
charter, the Company’s earnings for the third quarter were $0.27 per fully diluted share, equal to the second quarter of 2008. The decrease in operating
earnings per  share from the prior  year  third quarter  is  due primarily to increased provision for  loan losses, increased costs  associated with the



collection of problem loans, and a decline in revenues from the our Wealth Management business.

Loan growth – At September 30, 2008, portfolio loans were $1.94 billion, an increase of $301.0 million or 18%, from December 31, 2007.
Portfolio loans were up $384.0 million, or 25%, from September 30, 2007. The strong net growth in loans is attributable in part to a more
favorable competitive environment, with fewer competitors positioned today to capture new business, resulting in both increased volumes and
more favorable pricing. From a market perspective, the majority of the loan growth was generated in St. Louis, with the remainder from Kansas
City and Phoenix.
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Almost two-thirds of the loan growth this year has been to commercial and industrial businesses, as shown in the graph below. Real estate
construction loans increased $30.0 million in the third quarter primarily due to construction funding on Section 42, multi-family, low income
housing projects in Missouri and funding on a fully pre-leased retail center in St. Charles County, Missouri.

Deposit growth – Total deposits were $1.69 billion at September 30, 2008, an increase of $103.0 million, or 6.5%, from December 31, 2007.
During the third quarter of 2008, total  deposits grew $18.0 million, or 4% annualized. Total  deposits grew $242.0 million, or 17%, from
September 30, 2007. Non-interest bearing deposits represented 13% of total deposits at September 30, 2008. Excluding brokered certificates of
deposit, “core” deposits grew $48.0 million, or 4%, from a year ago, and declined $71.0 million, or 5%, during the quarter. Approximately
$30.0 million of the third quarter decline was attributable to the sale of the DeSoto, Kansas branch in the quarter. The remaining decline in core
deposits was limited to transaction accounts, primarily those held by clients with large money market balances. Growing concern over the
safety of bank deposits caused some large balance clients to reduce their exposure by spreading funds among numerous financial institutions.
Despite a stable Fed Funds rate during the period, increased price competition from smaller banks also contributed to core deposit outflows.

In July 2008, Enterprise joined the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service, or CDARS, which allows us to provide our customers with
access to additional levels of FDIC insurance coverage. As of September 30, 2008, the Bank had $15.0 million of reciprocal CDARS deposits
outstanding. See Liquidity Management for more information.

For the third quarter of 2008, brokered certificates of deposit represented 17% of total deposits on average.
 
Asset  quality – Nonperforming assets totaled $34.8 million, or 1.56%, of total  assets at September 30, 2008 versus 0.78% and 0.51% at
December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2007, respectively. At September 30, 2008, nonperforming loans represented 1.21% of portfolio loans
compared to 0.77% at December 31, 2007. The allowance for  loan losses was $25.7 million, or  1.32%, of portfolio loans versus $21.6
million, or 1.32%, at the end of 2007. See Provision for loan losses and nonperforming assets below for more information.
 
Net Interest Rate Margin – The fully tax-equivalent net interest rate margin was 3.34% for third quarter of 2008 versus 3.56% for the second
quarter of 2008 and 3.87% for third quarter of 2007. Net interest margin has been compressed largely due to sharply reduced short-term rates
from a year ago, increased volumes of wholesale funding to support loan growth, as well as elevated levels of nonperforming assets. Through
aggressive repricing initiatives, we have been able to reduce our interest-bearing liability costs somewhat offset lower earning asset yields
from a falling prime rate.
 
Branch Sales and Expansion – As part of our expansion effort, we plan to continue our strategy of operating relatively fewer offices with a
larger asset base per office, emphasizing commercial banking and wealth management and employing experienced staff who are compensated
on the basis of performance and customer service. As a result, on February 28, 2008, we sold the Enterprise branch in Liberty, Missouri for an
after tax gain of $315,000, or $0.02 per fully diluted share. On June 26, 2008, we merged
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the Claycomo branch of Great American into Enterprise and on July 31, 2008, we sold the Great American bank charter along with the DeSoto,
Kansas branch. The sale generated an after-tax gain of $1.5 million, or $0.12 per fully diluted share. See Note 2 – Dispositions for more
information.



During 2007, we announced our intent to enter the Phoenix, Arizona market, initially with a loan production office and subsequently in 2008
through an application to establish a new Arizona state bank charter. Conditions in the Arizona real  estate market have slowed regulatory
approvals for Arizona de novo charters. As a result, timing on the decision regarding the charter application is uncertain at this time, however,
Enterprise continues to operate a loan production office in central Phoenix. Through September 2008, the loan production office has generated
approximately $22.0 million of commercial and industrial and commercial real estate loans.

Wealth Management – Fee income from the Wealth Management line of business, in the third quarter of 2008 totaled $3.2 million, a decrease
of $295,000, or 9%, from the same quarter of 2007. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, Wealth Management fee income totaled
$9.5 million, down $479,000 or 4%, for the same period in 2007. See Noninterest Income in this section for more information.

As part of our new tax credit brokerage initiative within our Wealth Management segment, during the first nine months of 2008, we reported
$1.6 million of gains  related to  state  tax credits  held for  sale.  Approximately $1.2 million of the  total  gains  were  related to fair  value
accounting permitted under SFAS 159. The change in the fair value of the state tax credits held for sale was $413,000 in the third quarter of
2008. See Note 9 – Fair Value Measurements for more information.

Net Interest Income
In response to the recent federal funds (“fed funds”) decreases, which in turn lowered the prime rate earned on many of our loans, we aggressively
reduced deposit rates, in order to maintain our net interest rate margin at adequate levels. We will continue to reduce the cost of our short-term and
maturing funding sources to respond to the impact of any additional interest rate decreases, while maintaining a competitive position within our market.
The rapidity and severity of any additional  rate cuts will  have some impact on our ability to mitigate the effects of these cuts in the short-term.
However, because the Company is slightly asset sensitive, which means our assets generally re-price faster than our liabilities, any increases in the fed
funds rate by the Federal Open Market Committee will generally cause our net interest rate margin to increase.

Three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007
Net interest income (on a tax-equivalent basis) was $16.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to $16.1 million for the
same period of 2007, an increase of $0.8 million, or 5%. Total interest income decreased $2.5 million offset by a decrease in total interest expense of
$3.3 million.

Average interest-earning assets increased $360.0 million, or 22%, to $2.006 billion for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 compared to $1.646
billion for the quarter ended September 30, 2007. Loans accounted for the majority of the growth, increasing by $354.0 million, or 23% to $1.882
billion. Interest income on loans increased $6.2 million from growth, but was offset by a decrease of $8.7 million due to the impact of rates, for a net
decrease of $2.5 million versus third quarter of 2007.

For the quarter ended September 30, 2008, average interest-bearing liabilities increased $389.0 million, or 28%, to $1.771 billion compared to $1.383
billion for the quarter ended September 30, 2007. The growth in interest-bearing liabilities resulted from a $70.0 million increase in interest-bearing
core deposits, a $195.0 million increase in borrowed funds including FHLB advances and $124.0 million in net brokered certificates of deposit. For
the third quarter of 2008, interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities increased $3.7 million due to growth while the impact of declining rates
decreased interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities by $7.0 million versus third quarter of 2007, for a net decrease of $3.3 million.

The tax-equivalent net interest rate margin was 3.34% for the third quarter of 2008 compared to 3.87% for same period of 2007. The decline in the
margin was due to increased nonperforming assets, a less favorable funding mix, and the severity of the rate decreases by the Federal Open Market
Committee during the latter half of 2007 and early first half of 2008.

Nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007
Net interest income (on a tax-equivalent basis) was $50.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, compared to $45.6 million for the
same period of 2007, an increase of $4.6 million, or 10%. Total interest income decreased $1.9 million offset by a decrease in total interest expenses
of $6.5 million.
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Average interest-earning assets increased $328.0 million, or 21%, to $1.913 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to $1.586
billion for the same period in 2007. During the same period, average loans increased $322.0 million, or 22%, from $1.466 billion to $1.788 billion.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, average interest-bearing liabilities increased $344.0 million, or 26%, to $1.676 billion compared to
$1.332 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2007.

The net interest rate margin (on a tax-equivalent basis) was 3.51% for the first nine months of 2008, compared to 3.85% in the same period of 2007.
Changes in yields and cost of funds are similar to those described above.

Average Balance Sheet
The  following table  presents,  for  the  periods  indicated,  certain information related  to  our  average  interest-earning assets  and  interest-bearing
liabilities, as well as, the corresponding interest rates earned and paid, all on a tax equivalent basis.

The loans and deposits associated with Great American are included for one month of 2008 and three months of 2007.

Three months ended September 30,
2008 2007



Interest Average  Interest Average
Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/

(in thousands) Balance     Expense     Rate     Balance     Expense     Rate

Assets  
Interest-earning assets:

          Taxable loans (1) $      1,853,331 $      27,440      5.89% $      1,495,181 $      29,958      7.95%

          Tax-exempt loans (2) 28,982  659 9.05 33,178 714  8.54

     Total loans 1,882,313 28,099  5.94 1,528,359 30,672  7.96

          Taxable investments in debt and equity securities  116,930 1,393 4.74 108,642 1,275 4.66

          Non-taxable investments in debt and equity    
               securities (2) 766 12 6.23 951 14 5.84

          Short-term investments 5,626 30 2.12  7,745 107 5.48

     Total securities and short-term investments 123,322 1,435 4.63 117,338 1,396 4.72
Total interest-earning assets 2,005,635 29,534 5.86 1,645,697 32,068 7.73
Non-interest-earning assets:

          Cash and due from banks 38,282 41,326

          Other assets 165,656 112,825

          Allowance for loan losses (24,769) (19,609)

          Total assets $ 2,184,804 $ 1,780,239

 
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Interest-bearing liabilities:

          Interest-bearing transaction accounts $ 118,455 $ 359 1.21% $ 123,212 $ 803 2.59%

          Money market accounts 682,741 3,165 1.84 574,165 6,037 4.17

          Savings 8,748 11 0.50 12,970 37 1.13

          Certificates of deposit 620,145 6,229 4.00 525,078 6,952 5.25
Total interest-bearing deposits 1,430,089 9,764 2.72 1,235,425 13,829 4.44

          Subordinate debentures 56,834 805 5.63 57,166 1,038 7.20

          Borrowed funds 284,804 2,136 2.98 89,976 1,135 5.00
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,771,727 12,705 2.85 1,382,567 16,002 4.59
Noninterest bearing liabilities:

          Demand deposits 215,309 218,071

          Other liabilities 10,920 12,291

          Total liabilities 1,997,956 1,612,929

          Shareholders' equity 186,848 167,310

          Total liabilities & shareholders' equity $ 2,184,804 $ 1,780,239
Net interest income $ 16,829 $ 16,066
Net interest spread 3.01% 3.14%

Net interest rate margin (3) 3.34 3.87 

(1)   Average balances include non-accrual loans. The income on such loans is included in interest but is recognized only upon receipt. Loan fees, net of amortization of deferred loan origination fees and
costs, included in interest income are approximately $1,334,000 and $731,000 for the quarters ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

(2) Non-taxable income is presented on a fully tax-equivalent basis using the combined statutory federal and state income tax in effect for the year. The tax-equivalent adjustments were $245,000 and
$261,000 for the quarters ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

(3) Net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.
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The loans and deposits associated with Great American are included for seven months of 2007. Approximately $30.0 million of deposits associated
with the DeSoto branch of Great American are included for seven months of 2008.

Nine months ended September 30,
2008 2007
Interest Average Interest Average

Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/

(in thousands) Balance     Expense     Rate     Balance     Expense     Rate

Assets  
Interest-earning assets:

          Taxable loans (1) $      1,761,366 $      83,418      6.33% $      1,431,746 $      85,180      7.95%

          Tax-exempt loans (2) 26,766 1,845 9.21 34,078 2,128 8.35

     Total loans 1,788,132 85,263 6.37  1,465,824  87,308  7.96

          Taxable investments in debt and equity securities 112,020 3,954 4.71 112,092 3,756 4.48



          Non-taxable investments in debt and equity  
               securities (2)  818 37  6.04 932 40 5.74

          Short-term investments 12,145 251 2.76 6,743 277 5.49

     Total securities and short-term investments 124,983 4,242 4.53 119,767 4,073 4.55

Total interest-earning assets 1,913,115 89,505 6.25 1,585,591 91,381 7.71

Non-interest-earning assets:  
          Cash and due from banks 40,319 42,866

          Other assets 157,566 103,077

          Allowance for loan losses (23,319) (18,944)

          Total assets $ 2,087,681 $ 1,712,590

 
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Interest-bearing liabilities: 
          Interest-bearing transaction accounts $ 123,357 $ 1,301 1.41% $ 120,790 $ 2,363 2.62%

          Money market accounts 691,854 11,288 2.18 553,271 17,509 4.23

          Savings 10,164 47 0.62 11,250 96 1.14

          Certificates of deposit 548,669 17,944 4.37 504,374 19,586 5.19

Total interest-bearing deposits 1,374,044 30,580 2.97 1,189,685 39,554 4.45

          Subordinate debentures 56,816 2,551 6.00 52,385 2,822 7.20

          Borrowed funds 244,832 6,162 3.36 89,966 3,374 5.01
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,675,692 39,293 3.13 1,332,036 45,750 4.59
Noninterest-bearing liabilities:

          Demand deposits 218,270 213,003

          Other liabilities 12,268 9,968

          Total liabilities 1,906,230 1,555,007

          Shareholders' equity 181,451 157,583

          Total liabilities & shareholders' equity $ 2,087,681 $ 1,712,590
Net interest income $ 50,212 $ 45,631
Net interest spread 3.12% 3.12%

Net interest rate margin (3) 3.51 3.85

(1)   Average balances include non-accrual loans. The income on such loans is included in interest but is recognized only upon receipt. Loan fees, net of amortization of deferred loan origination fees and
costs, included in interest income are approximately $3,691,000 and $2,352,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

(2) Non-taxable income is presented on a fully tax-equivalent basis using the combined statutory federal and state income tax in effect for the year. The tax-equivalent adjustments were $687,000 and
$781,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 respectively.

(3) Net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.
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Rate/Volume
The following table sets forth, on a tax-equivalent basis for the periods indicated, a summary of the changes in interest income and interest expense
resulting from changes in yield/rates and volume.

2008 compared to 2007
3 month 9 month

Increase (decrease) due to Increase (decrease) due to

(in thousands) Volume(1)      Rate(2)      Net      Volume(1)      Rate(2)      Net

Interest earned on:  
     Taxable loans $ 6,226 $ (8,744) $ (2,518) $ 17,543 $ (19,305) $ (1,762)

     Nontaxable loans (3) (95)  40 (55) (487)  204 (283)

     Taxable investments in debt       
          and equity securities 95 23  118 (2) 200 198

     Nontaxable investments in debt  
          and equity securities (3) (3) 1 (2) (5) 2 (3)
Short-term investments (24) (53) (77) 154 (180) (26)

          Total interest-earning assets $      6,199 $      (8,733) $      (2,534) $      17,203 $      (19,079) $      (1,876)

  
Interest paid on:

     Interest-bearing transaction accounts $ (30) $ (414) $ (444) $ 49 $ (1,111) $ (1,062)

     Money market accounts 973 (3,845) (2,872) 3,670 (9,891) (6,221)

     Savings (9) (17) (26) (8) (41) (49)



     Certificates of deposit 1,118 (1,841) (723) 1,631 (3,273) (1,642)

     Subordinated debentures (6) (227) (233) 227 (498) (271)

     Borrowed funds 1,614 (613) 1,001 4,208 (1,420) 2,788

          Total interest-bearing liabilities 3,660 (6,957) (3,297) 9,777 (16,234) (6,457)

Net interest income $ 2,539 $ (1,776) $ 763 $ 7,426 $ (2,845) $ 4,581 

(1) Change in volume multiplied by yield/rate of prior period.
(2) Change in yield/rate multiplied by volume of prior period.
(3)      Nontaxable income is presented on a fully tax-equivalent basis using the combined statutory federal and state income tax rate in effect for each year.
NOTE:  The change in interest due to both rate and volume has been allocated to rate and volume changes in proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each.

Provision for loan losses and nonperforming assets
The provision for loan losses in the third quarter of 2008 was $2.8 million compared to $600,000 in the same quarter of 2007 and $3.2 million in the
second quarter  of 2008.  The increase  in the  provision for  loan losses  from the prior  year  third  quarter  was  due to higher  loan growth,  higher
nonperforming loan levels, and adverse risk rating changes on loans. The Company actively monitors its loan portfolio to identify problem loans and
assign appropriate risk ratings. The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans was 1.32% at September 30, 2008 compared to 1.32% at
December 31, 2007 and 1.27% at September 30, 2007. Management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate.

At September 30, 2008, nonperforming loans were $23.5 million, or 1.21%, of total loans. This compares to $12.7 million, or 0.77%, at December 31,
2007 and $13.1 million, or 0.71%, at June 30, 2008. Nonperforming loans were $8.5 million, or 0.55% at September 30, 2007. Three relationships, a
$2.5 million loan from a Kansas City-based financial  services company, a $3.5 million loan secured by a retail  land development in Northwest
Arkansas and a $4.8 million loan secured by a medical office building in the Kansas City area represented the third quarter increase.

In addition to the two commercial real estate loans described above, the largest single exposure in the commercial real estate category is a $5.5 million
construction loan on a partially completed retail center.
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Nonperforming loans at September 30, 2008 by industry segment were:

Other real estate was $11.3 million at September 30, 2008 compared to $3.0 million at December 31, 2007 and $9.3 million at June 30, 2008. Other
real estate was $857,000 at September 30, 2007. The increase in Other real estate during the third quarter is related to the $2.2 million foreclosure of a
43 lot residential subdivision, which is currently under a letter of intent for sale. In total, $6.4 million of the Other real estate at September 30, 2008
represents residential lots (almost evenly split between St. Louis and Kansas City) and $2.8 million represents residential homes. Through September
30, 2008, we sold $6.2 million of Other real estate at a net gain of $584,000. We expect to sell an additional $2.0 million of Other real estate in the
fourth quarter of 2008 based on signed sales contracts or contracts that are in process of being finalized.

The Company recorded third quarter  net charge-offs  of $1.1 million, or  0.24%, of average portfolio loans on an annualized basis,  compared to
$549,000, or 0.14%, for the third quarter of 2007 and $1.4 million, or 0.32%, for the second quarter of 2008. We expect net charge-offs in the fourth
quarter of 2008 to significantly increase due primarily to losses on two nonperforming loans and expect the net charge-off rate for the year to be
between 0.50% and 0.60% of average portfolio loans.

The increase in non-performing assets remains in line with our expectations as certain sectors of the real estate industry remain challenged in this
environment.  While  our  credit issues  had been largely concentrated in the  residential  category,  we are  now  also seeing some stress  in certain
commercial real estate projects. However, most other industry segments represented in our portfolios remain relatively healthy at this point. We expect
nonperforming assets to remain elevated through the balance of this year and continuing into much of next year.
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The following table summarizes changes in the allowance for loan losses arising from loans charged off and recoveries on loans previously charged
off, by loan category, and additions to the allowance charged to expense.

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

(in thousands) 2008      2007      2008      2007

Allowance at beginning of period $ 24,011 $ 19,703 $ 21,593 $ 16,988 
(Disposed) acquired allowance for loan losses (50) - (50) 2,010
Loans charged off:

     Commercial and industrial 89 29 121 238

     Real estate:  
          Commercial 497 65 832 65 
          Construction 506 445 1,530 516

          Residential 66 101 1,998 759

     Consumer and other (2) 27 11 109

     Total loans charged off 1,156 667 4,492 1,687
Recoveries of loans previously charged off:

     Commercial and industrial 7 71 57 189

     Real estate:  
          Commercial - - - 15

          Construction 25 25 152 25

          Residential - 2 43 15

     Consumer and other - 20  9 34

     Total recoveries of loans  32  118 261 278

Net loan chargeoffs 1,124 549 4,231 1,409

Provision for loan losses 2,825 600 8,350 2,165
Allowance at end of period $ 25,662 $ 19,754 $ 25,662 $ 19,754

  
Average loans $      1,882,313 $      1,528,359 $      1,788,132 $      1,465,824
Total portfolio loans 1,942,600 1,558,885 1,942,600 1,558,885
Nonperforming loans 23,546 8,542 23,546 8,542

  
Net chargeoffs to average loans (annualized) 0.24% 0.14% 0.32% 0.19%

Allowance for loan losses to loans 1.32 1.27 1.32 1.27 

The following table presents the categories of nonperforming assets and other ratios as of the dates indicated.

September 30      December 31
(in thousands) 2008 2007
Non-accrual loans $ 23,546 $ 12,720
Loans past due 90 days or more
     and still accruing interest - -
Restructured loans - -
     Total nonperforming loans 23,546 12,720 
Foreclosed property  11,285 2,963
Total nonperforming assets $ 34,831 $ 15,683
 
Total assets $     2,236,401 $     1,999,118
Total loans 1,942,600 1,641,432
Total loans plus foreclosed property 1,953,885 1,644,395
 
Nonperforming loans to total loans 1.21% 0.77%
Nonperforming assets to total loans plus
     foreclosed property 1.78 0.95
Nonperforming assets to total assets 1.56 0.78
 
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans 109.00% 170.00%
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Noninterest Income
Noninterest income increased $3.0 million, or 65%, from the third quarter of 2007 compared to the third quarter of 2008. The increase includes a $2.8
million pre-tax gain on the sale of the DeSoto charter, along with $593,000 of gains related to state tax credit assets. The fee income from the state tax
credits during the third quarter includes $413,000 from the fair value increases under SFAS 159. Lower Wealth Management revenues offset these
gains.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, noninterest income increased $4.2 million, or 31%, from the same period in 2007. The increase
includes a $560,000 pre-tax gain on the sale of the Liberty branch, a $2.8 million pre-tax gain on the sale of the Desoto charter, along with $1.5 million
of gains related to state tax credit assets. These gains were offset by lower Wealth Management revenue.

Wealth Management revenue declined $2.0 million, or 20%, on a year-to-date basis from the same period in 2007.

Trust revenues have been negatively impacted by declining market values of assets under management and client attrition related to advisor
turnover experienced in the first quarter.
 
Fiduciary revenues continue to grow modestly as new business volumes have been steady.
 
Millennium revenues are down 30% from the prior year due to lower levels of paid premium sales and slightly lower sales margins. Producer
sales volumes and carrier commission payouts remain constrained due to continued consolidation of distributors in the industry, uncertainty in
the financial  markets  and tougher  underwriting for  large insurance cases.  Management continues  to evaluate  strategic  options  to improve
Millennium’s competitive advantage.

Increases in Service charges on deposit accounts were primarily due to the declining earnings crediting rate on commercial accounts, which increased
service charges collected. Fees related to our international operations and ATM usage also increased. Through September 30, 2008, we sold $$6.2
million of Other real estate at a net gain of $584,000.

Noninterest Expense
Noninterest expenses were $19.1 million in the third quarter of 2008, an increase of $6.9 million, or 57%, from the same quarter in 2007.

The increase was mainly due to a $5.9 million goodwill impairment charge associated with Millennium. The impairment charge reflects our assessment
that the margins and earnings in our wholesale life insurance brokerage business have been, and will  continue to be pressured. Millennium needs
increased scale to strengthen its competitive position in the face of a consolidating insurance industry and the effects of tighter underwriting standards
among the major life insurance carriers. We are working with Millennium management on strategic alternatives to accomplish this. See Note 4 –
Goodwill and intangible assets for more information.

Excluding the goodwill impairment charge, noninterest expenses increased $1.0 million, or 8%, compared to third quarter of 2007.

Noninterest expenses were $45.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, an increase of $9.3 million, or 25%, from the same period in
2007. The year-over-year  increase in noninterest expenses  includes the $5.9 million goodwill  impairment charge associated with Millennium as
discussed above. Excluding the goodwill impairment charge, noninterest expenses increased $3.4 million, or 9%. Salaries and benefits increased $1.7
million, or 8%. Excluding the incremental impact of the Millennium compensation due to the December 31, 2007 restructuring, salaries and benefits
increased $600,000, or 3%. These increases are primarily due to higher levels of benefit costs, mainly company-paid insurance benefits and the Long
Term Incentive Plan. These expenses were somewhat offset by reduced Wealth Management commissions. Other increases include $614,000 for FDIC
insurance premiums resulting from the FDIC’s newly implemented rate structure along with $348,000 of expenses related to legal and operating costs
associated with higher nonperforming asset levels, and $372,000 of corporate legal and professional services.

Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes was $948,000 and $4.7 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to $2.6 million and
$7.0 million for the same periods in 2007. The effective tax rate for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 was 41.8% and 36.0%,
respectively, compared to 34.6% and 35.7% for the same periods in 2007. The increase in the effective tax rate during the third quarter of 2008
primarily resulted from nondeductible goodwill write-offs of $777,000 related to the Liberty and DeSoto branch sales. Tax benefits related to certain
federal tax items of $80,000and $68,000, were reversed in the third quarter of 2008 and 2007, respectively. Federal tax benefits related to low income
housing tax credits reduced the tax provision by $138,000 and $373,000, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity management
The objective  of liquidity management is  to  ensure  the  Company has  the  ability to generate  sufficient cash or  cash equivalents  in a  timely and
cost-effective manner to meet its commitments as they become due. Funds are available from a number of sources, such as from the core deposit base
and from loans and securities repayments and maturities. Additionally, liquidity is provided from sales of the securities portfolio, lines of credit with
major banks, the Federal Reserve and the FHLB, the ability to acquire brokered deposits and the ability to sell loan participations to other banks.

The Company’s liquidity management framework includes measurement of several key elements, such as the loan to deposit ratio, wholesale deposits
as a percentage of total deposits, and various dependency ratios used by banking regulators. The Company’s liquidity framework also incorporates
contingency planning to assess the nature and volatility of funding sources and to determine alternatives to these sources.



Strong capital ratios, credit quality and core earnings are essential to retaining cost-effective access to the wholesale funding markets. Deterioration in
any of these factors could have an impact on the Company’s ability to access these funding sources and, as a result, these factors are monitored on an
ongoing basis as part of the liquidity management process.

While core deposits and loan and investment repayments are principal sources of liquidity, funding diversification is another key element of liquidity
management. Diversity is achieved by strategically varying depositor types, terms, funding markets, and instruments.

The parent Company’s liquidity is managed to provide the funds necessary to pay dividends to shareholders, service debt, invest in subsidiaries as
necessary, and satisfy other operating requirements. The parent Company’s primary funding sources to meet its liquidity requirements are dividends
from subsidiaries, borrowings against its $18.0 million line of credit with a major bank, and proceeds from the issuance of equity (i.e. stock option
exercises).

Another source of funding for the parent company includes the issuance of subordinated debentures. As of September 30, 2008, the Company had $56.8
million of outstanding subordinated debentures as part of eight Trust Preferred Securities Pools. These securities are classified as debt but are included
in regulatory capital and the related interest expense is tax-deductible, which makes them a very attractive source of funding.

Enterprise is subject to regulations and, among other things, may be limited in its ability to pay dividends or transfer funds to the parent Company.
Accordingly, consolidated cash flows as presented in the consolidated statements of cash flows may not represent cash immediately available for the
payment of cash dividends to the Company’s shareholders or for other cash needs.

Investment securities are also an important tool to the Company’s liquidity objective. As of September 30, 2008, the entire investment portfolio was
available for sale. Of the $114.0 million investment portfolio available for sale, $88.4 million was pledged as collateral for public deposits, treasury,
tax and loan notes, and other requirements. Approximately $48.7 million of the remaining securities could be pledged or sold to enhance liquidity, if
necessary.

The bank has a variety of funding sources available to increase financial flexibility. At September 30, 2008, under blanket loan pledges, absent being in
default of their respective credit agreements, Enterprise had $79.9 million available from the FHLB of Des Moines. The amount available from the
FHLB of Des Moines increased by approximately $130.0 million in early July as a result of increases in Enterprise organic loans and loans related to
the Claycomo branch acquisition which were pledged to the FHLB of Des Moines. In conjunction with the Claycomo branch acquisition and in
anticipation of the Great American sale, all outstanding advances with the FHLB of Topeka were paid in full in June 2008.

At September 30, 2008, Enterprise also had $329.0 million available from the Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis under pledged loan agreements.
Enterprise has access to over $70.0 million in overnight federal funds lines from various banking institutions. During the third quarter of 2008, we
borrowed from several of our liquidity sources, including the Federal Reserve, to verify the availability of the federal funds. At September 30, 2008,
we had $36.6 million of outstanding federal funds purchased from the Federal Reserve.

In July 2008, Enterprise joined the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service, or CDARS, which allows us to provide our customers with access
to additional levels of FDIC insurance coverage. The CDARS program is designed to provide full FDIC insurance on deposit amounts larger than the
stated minimum by exchanging or reciprocating larger depository relationships with other member banks. Our depositors’ funds are broken into
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smaller amounts and placed with other banks that are members of the network. Each member bank issues CDs in amounts under $100,000, so the entire
deposit is eligible for FDIC insurance. CDARS are considered brokered deposits according to banking regulations; however, the Company considers
the reciprocal deposits placed through the CDARS program as core funding and does not report the balances as brokered sources in its internal or
external financial reports. As of September 30, 2008, the Bank had $15.0 million of reciprocal CDARS deposits outstanding.

In addition to the reciprocal deposits available through CDARS, we also have access to the “one-way buy” program, which allows us to bid on the
excess deposits of other CDARS member banks. The Company will report any outstanding “one-way buy” funds as brokered funds in its internal and
external financial reports. At September 30, 2008, we had no outstanding “one-way buy” deposits.

Finally, because the bank is “well-capitalized”, it has the ability to sell certificates of deposit through various national or regional brokerage firms, if
needed.

Over the normal course of business, the Company enters into certain forms of off-balance sheet transactions, including unfunded loan commitments and
letters of credit. These transactions are managed through the Company’s various risk management processes. Management considers both on-balance
sheet and off-balance sheet transactions in its evaluation of the Company’s liquidity. The Company has $546.0 million in unused loan commitments as
of September 30, 2008. While this commitment level would be difficult to fund given the Company’s current liquidity resources, the nature of these
commitments is such that the likelihood of funding them is very low.

Regulatory capital
The Company and its bank affiliate are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the Federal banking agencies. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have
a direct material effect on the financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the
Company  and  its  bank  affiliate  must  meet  specific  capital  guidelines  that  involve  quantitative  measures  of  assets,  liabilities,  and  certain
off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The banking affiliate’s capital amounts and classification are also subject
to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.



Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and its banking affiliate to maintain minimum amounts
and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average assets. To be categorized
as “well capitalized”, banks must maintain minimum total risk-based (10%), Tier 1 risk-based (6%) and Tier 1 leverage ratios (5%). Management
believes, as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, that the Company and its banking affiliates meet all capital adequacy requirements to
which they are subject.

On September 30, 2008, Enterprise completed a $2.5 million private placement of subordinated capital notes. The notes mature in 2018, pay a fixed
rate of interest at 10%, and are callable by Enterprise in five years.

We are actively negotiating plans to issue an additional $25.0 million or more in Convertible Trust Preferred Securities that will  also qualify as
regulatory capital until they would convert to EFSC common stock. The Company is planning to file an application to participate in the US Treasury
Department’s  recently announced bank capital  purchase program as an additional  source of regulatory capital.  In these uncertain economic times
management believes that positioning the Company with excess capital is not only prudent, but also allows us to take advantage of opportunities that
may present themselves in the future.

The following table summarizes the Company’s risk-based capital and leverage ratios at the dates indicated:

At September 30,    At December 31,
(in thousands) 2008  2007
Tier I capital to risk weighted assets  8.83%  9.32%
Total capital to risk weighted assets 10.18% 10.54%
Leverage ratio (Tier I capital to average assets)  9.04%  8.85%
Tangible capital to tangible assets  5.93% 5.68%
Tier I capital $      184,175 $      164,957 
Total risk-based capital $ 212,337 $ 186,549 
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ITEM 3: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The disclosures set forth in this item are qualified by the section captioned “Safe Harbor Statement Under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995” included in Item 2 – Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial  Condition and Results of Operations of this report and other
cautionary statements set forth elsewhere in this report.

Market risk arises from exposure to changes in interest rates and other relevant market rate or price risk. The Company faces market risk in the form of
interest rate risk through transactions other than trading activities. Market risk from these activities, in the form of interest rate risk, is measured and
managed through a number of methods. The Company uses financial modeling techniques to measure interest rate risk. These techniques measure the
sensitivity of future earnings due to changing interest rate environments. Guidelines established by the Asset/Liability Management Committees and
approved by the Company’s Board of Directors are used to monitor exposure of earnings at risk. General interest rate movements are used to develop
sensitivity as the Company feels it has no primary exposure to a specific point on the yield curve. These limits are based on the Company’s exposure to
a 100 basis points and 200 basis points immediate and sustained parallel rate move, either upward or downward.

The following table represents the estimated interest rate sensitivity and periodic and cumulative gap positions calculated as of September 30, 2008.

Beyond

5 years

                              or no stated      
(in thousands) Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 maturity Total

Interest-Earning Assets   
Investments in debt and equity securities $ 25,415 $ 16,710 $ 14,053 $ 10,302 $ 2,413 $ 45,039 $ 113,932

Interest-bearing deposits 2,178 - - - - - 2,178

Federal funds sold 1,718 - - -  - - 1,718

Loans (1) 1,284,934 190,533 169,885 73,457  36,549 187,242 1,942,600

Loans held for sale 520 - - - - - 520

Total interest-earning assets $ 1,314,765 $ 207,243 $ 183,938 $ 83,759 $ 38,962 $ 232,281 $ 2,060,948

 
Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Savings, NOW and Money market deposits $ 783,050 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 783,050

Certificates of deposit 463,432 130,086 80,359 5,160 282 671 679,990

Subordinated debentures 32,064 - 10,310 14,433 - 2,500 59,307

Federal funds purchased 36,600 - - - - - 36,600



Other borrowings 185,579 41,046 15,396 7,095 24 10,418 259,558

Total interest-bearing liabilities $ 1,500,725 $ 171,132 $ 106,065 $ 26,688 $ 306 $ 13,589 $ 1,818,505

 
Interest-sensitivity GAP  
       GAP by period $ (185,960) $ 36,111 $ 77,873 $ 57,071 $ 38,656 $ 218,692 $ 242,443

       Cumulative GAP $ (185,960)  $ (149,849) $ (71,976) $ (14,905) $ 23,751 $ 242,443 $ 242,443

Ratio of interest-earning assets to

interest-bearing liabilities  
       Periodic 0.88 1.21  1.73 3.14 127.33 17.09 1.13

       Cumulative GAP 0.88 0.91 0.96 0.99 1.01 1.13 1.13

(1)     Adjusted for the impact of the interest rate swaps.

ITEM 4: CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of September 30, 2008, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), management has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures pursuant
to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15. Based on that evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of September 30, 2008, to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s periodic SEC filings is processed, recorded,
summarized and reported when required. There were no changes during the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q in the Company’s
internal controls that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, those controls.
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PART II – OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 6: EXHIBITS

Exhibit  
Number         Description  

 
Registrant herby agrees to furnish to the Commission, upon request, the instruments defining the rights of holders of each issue of
long-term debt of Registrant and its consolidated subsidiaries.

 
*31.1 Chief Executive Officer’s Certification required by Rule 13(a)-14(a).

 
*31.2 Chief Financial Officer’s Certification required by Rule 13(a)-14(a).

 
**32.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to section § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002.
 
**32.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to section § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002.

* Filed herewith

** Furnished herewith. Notwithstanding any incorporation of this Quarterly Statement on Form 10-Q in any other filing by the Registrant, Exhibits
furnished herewith and designated with two (**) shall not be deemed incorporated by reference to any other filing unless specifically otherwise set
forth herein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Clayton, State of Missouri on the day of November 6, 2008.

 
ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP
 



By: /s/ Peter F. Benoist 
 Peter F. Benoist
 Chief Executive Officer 

  
By: /s/ Frank H. Sanfilippo  

 Frank H. Sanfilippo 
 Chief Financial Officer 
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Section 2: EX-31.1 (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S CERTIFICATION
REQUIRED BY RULE 13(A)-14(A))

EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Peter F. Benoist, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Enterprise Financial Services Corp;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  Designed  such internal  control  over  financial  reporting,  or  caused  such internal  control  over  financial  reporting to  be  designed  under  our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

By: /s/ Peter F. Benoist  Date: November 6, 2008  
Peter F. Benoist   



Chief Executive Officer   
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Section 3: EX-31.2 (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER'S CERTIFICATION
REQUIRED BY RULE 13(A)-14(A))

EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Frank H. Sanfilippo, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Enterprise Financial Services Corp;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  Designed  such internal  control  over  financial  reporting,  or  caused  such internal  control  over  financial  reporting to  be  designed  under  our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

By: /s/ Frank H. Sanfilippo  Date: November 6, 2008  
Frank H. Sanfilippo   
Chief Financial Officer   
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Section 4: EX-32.1 (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CERTIFICATION



PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Enterprise Financial Services Corp (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30,
2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Peter F. Benoist, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as enacted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and the information contained in the
Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Peter F. Benoist 
Peter F. Benoist 
Chief Executive Officer 
November 6, 2008 
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Section 5: EX-32.2 (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Enterprise Financial Services Corp (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30,
2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Frank H. Sanfilippo, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as enacted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and the information contained in the
Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Frank H. Sanfilippo 
Frank H. Sanfilippo 
Chief Financial Officer
November 6, 2008 
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